Questions and Answers for Kern Council of Government’s open Request for Proposal to
contract with a Consolidated Transportation Services Agency for Metropolitan
Bakersfield
1. Given the proximity of the Q&A submission deadline to the final proposal deadline, will
Kern COG extend the proposal deadline to August 20, 2021?
Answer: Yes.
2. Can Kern COG confirm that it will accept proposal submissions via e-mail or through
an online portal?
Answer: No. One reproducible master, five copies, and one electronic copy of all
proposals must be delivered to Kern COG no later than 4:00 p.m. Friday, August 20,
2021. Proposals will not be accepted after 4:00 p.m. Pacific Time. Postmarks will not be
accepted. Proposals should be delivered to
Aron Hakimi
Executive Director
Kern Council of Governments
1401 19th Street, Suite 300
Bakersfield, CA 93301
3. Can Kern COG confirm that verified e-signatures (i.e. Docusign) will be accepted for
this submission?
Answer: no.
4. Can Kern COG confirm that it is seeking a fully demand-responsive transit service? In
other words, that all trips delivered by the consolidated transportation service would be
either booked in advance or in demand (i.e. at the moment of desired travel), rather than
operating fixed routes and schedules?
Answer: Yes, Kern COG can confirm that it is seeking a fully demand-responsive transit
service to pre-screened eligible elderly and disabled riders within the metropolitan
Bakersfield area.
5. Can Kern COG confirm the anticipated launch date for the services contemplated by
the RFP? Does Kern COG have any flexibility regarding its desired launch date?
Answer: Yes, Kern COG can confirm the anticipated launch date based on the RFP date,
and yes, Kern COG does have flexibility regarding its desired launch date.
6. Can Kern COG provide any forecasts or expected ridership numbers for the CTSA?
Answer: Below, is the CTSA ridership for FY 2015 through 2020.

2015
46,385

2016
39,539

2017
48,247

2018
46,015

2019
43,687

2020
33,145

5 Yr. ttl.
257,018

As you see from the above data, the North of the River Recreation and Park district
recorded the highest 5 Yr. ridership in 2018. However, similar to other public transit
agencies in the area and across California, ridership for the service declined in 2020
(Attributed to the impact of the Covid-19 Pandemic).
7. Is the CTSA service open to all members of the general public, or only certain riders
meeting certain eligibility criteria?
Answer: The service is open to the elderly and disabled residents of the service area.
However, riders must apply for the service through the operating agency.
8. Can Kern COG confirm its total budget for this procurement? Should bidders assume
a total budget of $4.92 million (i.e., the stated 2021-22 budget of $983,205 multiplied by
a five-year contract)?
Answer: Kern COG can confirm that the CTSA operator will receive no more than 5% of
the annual Transportation Development Act (Local Transit Funding – LTF) funds for the
Kern region. The State Controller’s Office (SCO) establishes the amount of the
Transportation Development Act (TDA-LTF) funds are apportioned to the Kern region.
Below is the North of the River TDA funding for FY 2015 through 2020.
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
5 Yr. Ttl.
$1,045,865 $958,568 $908,203 $896,632 $1,004,397 $1,012,857 $5,826,522
SCO annual TDA apportionments are based on sales taxes collected in the region.
9. Can Kern COG provide more information regarding its desired fleet size with respect
to the state budget? Is Kern COG open to proposals which propose to scale up to the
desired fleet of thirteen over time (e.g., starting with a smaller fleet for the first months of
service) based on funding availability and anticipated ridership?
Answer: The fleet size is based on the existing coverage area and the organization of the
drivers (part-time, full-time, etc.). Yes, if the proposed operator can demonstrate it can
maintain the current level of service with a smaller fleet for the first few months and scale
up to the desired fleet within a negotiated time. The fleet size would also be subject to a
TDA Triennial Performance Audit scrutiny regarding how effective the operation is as
compared to its peers.
10. May bidders submit their own pricing proposal in place of “Attachment B Budget and
Cost Schedule Template” to provide more detail, clarity, and context on their pricing? If
not, could bidders submit this in addition to Attachment B?

Answer: Yes, bidders are encouraged to submit their pricing proposals in place of
“Attachment B”. However, any proposed budget must include a reasonable demonstration
the required 10% farebox ratio will be achieved.
11. Can Kern COG confirm it would accept proposals for a fleet model in which vehicles
are leased, rather than purchased, for the duration of the CTSA contract, provided this
model meets all other Kern COG vehicle requirements?
Answer: Yes, leased rather than purchased vehicles may be considered for the service.
However, to file a TDA claim for operational cost reimbursements, the vehicles would be
required to pass a California Highway Patrol Motor Carrier Fleet inspection every thirteen
months, and records of repairs would be required of the operator. Additionally, the
proposed operator would be ineligible to compete for biannual Federal Transit
Administration Section 5310 capital grants. The proposed operator would be eligible to
apply for biannual Federal Transit Administration Section 5310 operational grants.
12. Can Kern COG confirm it is open to proposals which would use independent
contractor drivers to deliver the CTSA service?
Answer: Independent contractors and volunteer drivers may be used to operate the CTSA
service on the condition that the drivers and the vehicles they drive comply with the
California Department of Motor Vehicles (DMV) Pull Notice program. The operator would
be required to administer the DMV Pull Notice program and retain driver records.
13. Is Kern COG open to proposals in which a subset of the total vehicle fleet are
wheelchair accessible (WAVs) if the proposal can demonstrate that this model will be able
to serve all passengers requiring accessible service at an equivalent level/quality of
service to passengers without accessibility needs?
Answer: The proposed operator would have to demonstrate that it has a prepared a
Federal Title VI Plan and its proposed service complies with Title VI regulations.
14. Can Kern COG provide more detail regarding the relationship between the selected
CTSA provider and the social service providers about section III. Purpose and Objectives
of the Proposal? Specifically:
a. What type of organization are the social service providers and how many are there?
b. What is the level of interaction and information exchange between the CTSA and the
providers?
c. How is it expected the CTSA provider will interact with the social service providers
when it comes to scheduling and dispatching vehicles?
Answer: The Social Services Transportation Advisory Committee (SSTAC – 8 to 10
members) is an advisory committee created to meet the requirements of the
Transportation Development Act for Regional Transportation Planning Agencies and
Metropolitan Planning Organizations. The primary function of the SSTAC is to review the

annual Kern COG staff report regarding unmet transit needs public hearing documents of
all of the Kern region TDA eligible agencies and make a recommended record of finding
to the Kern COG Transportation Planning Policy Committee.
Currently, the chairman of Kern COG’s SSTAC is the manager of North of the River
Recreation and Park District’s CTSA service. As a member of the SSTAC, the proposed
CTSA operator would be required to have a staff member attend SSTAC meetings four
or five times per year (either in-person or via an Internet link). Attending the SSTAC
meetings will allow the proposed operator knowledge of public transit updates, grant
program announcements, and other issues specifically dedicated to senior and disabled
residents in Kern County.
The proposed operator may interact directly with fellow SSTAC members at the meeting
or at his/her leisure. The SSTAC does not have any control operational or otherwise of
the CTSA operations. The SSTAC is by definition an advisory committee.

